

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction	3
Purpose	3
Integration and Collaboration	3
A Living Document	3
Targets	3
Integrated Initiatives	4
The Seedling Project	4
Campus as a Living Lab	4
Climate and Sustainability Hub	6
Goals, Strategies and Actions	8
xé?xə tə́ŋəxʷ İ XAXE TENEW İ Sacred Earth	8
Innovator and partner	11
Educator and learner	13
Climate solutions and sustainability leader	15
Implementation and Reporting	21
Implementation	21
Reporting	21
Glossary of Terms	22

## INTRODUCTION

### **PURPOSE**

The Climate and Sustainability Action Plan 2030 - Actions details specific initiatives, strategies and actions to advance the goals identified in the accompanying Climate and Sustainability Action Plan (CSAP) strategy.

UVic has developed these initiatives, strategies and actions using an integrated approach, weaving the vision and six guiding principles into each of our four main themes. Taken together, the plan provides clear, actionable next steps for the university community.

### INTEGRATION AND COLLABORATION

Integration and collaboration are fundamental to the University of Victoria's climate and sustainability successes. Working with internal and external communities helps us to integrate sustainability and climate change programs, policies and solutions across campus and beyond, and will play a critical role in achieving our goals and targets.

## A LIVING DOCUMENT

To achieve our goals, we set out on the following pages a series of actions. We will update them as we complete these activities and as new priorities emerge.

### **TARGETS**

#### **GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS**

**Target 1:** Reduce campus operations greenhouse gas emissions (GHGs) by 50% below our 2010 baseline by 2030, and Net Zero by 2040. Further, the university will work with researchers to explore, develop and incorporate emerging technologies and approaches to achieve a climate-positive campus by 2050.

#### **SUSTAINABILITY**

**Target 2:** Achieve Sustainability Tracking Assessment and Rating System (STARS) Platinum rating certification by 2026.

#### UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

**Target 3:** Each year, demonstrate advancement toward UN 2030 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

## INTEGRATED INITIATIVES

## THE SEEDLING PROJECT

Conceived of and led by Carey Newman, Impact Chair in Indigenous Art Practices at UVic, the artistic concept for this initiative is straightforward: plant a western red cedar tree, design a virtual 3D totem, and commit to carving and raising the totem when the tree is mature, 600-1,000 years in the future.

Rooted to Indigenous Knowledges and governance, this project involves much more than providing soil, water, and sunlight to nurture a tree. Implementing this promise enables us to consider climate change, deforestation and social challenges, and brings together research initiatives across campus to seek innovative solutions to by expanding our relationships and thinking around land, law, governance, art, time, and technology.

The initiatives that will bring this strategic initiative project to life are:

**Initiative 1:** Plant a western red cedar tree

**Initiative 2:** Design a virtual 3D totem

**Initiative 3:** Commit to carving and raising the totem when the tree is mature,

600-1,000 years in the future

### **CAMPUS AS A LIVING LAB**

Campus as a Living Lab (CLL) will be a university-wide program that coordinates academic research and teaching projects to use the campus and surrounding areas as places for students, staff and faculty to engage with, trial and advance real-world climate and sustainability solutions. CLL programs will be designed to encourage innovation, learning and exchange and to fulfill the aims of UVic's strategic plans and policies. This program will respect, uphold, and uplift Indigenous Knowledge systems and further support Indigenous-led initiatives, such as the Living Lab Project and Campus as Living Lands.

These initiatives will drive the development of UVic's Campus as a Living Lab program:

**Initiative 4:** Investigate, design and develop formal structures to create Campus as a Living Lab

#### **ACTION**

Create a program to coordinate living laboratory projects with internal and external community partners.

**Initiative 5:** Integrate academic research and teaching with campus planning, operations and services to respond to climate and sustainability challenges

Create, enhance and support multidisciplinary classes to address topics such as climate adaptation, transportation, energy systems, food, land management, etc. in collaboration with university operations and campus services, and integrate these classes into different programs.

Champion actions that contribute to the health of UVic's surrounding areas.

Initiative 6: Create opportunities for developing climate solutions on campus so that it becomes an exemplar of climate action and sustainability innovation

#### **ACTIONS**

Engage and use our campus to pilot highly visible and innovative demonstration projects or create exhibits to educate and inspire the campus and broader community and test new ideas.

Partner with campus operations to embed research and assessment within new capital projects, procurement and campus sustainability.

Actively pursue industry collaboration on climate and sustainability research.

#### **Initiative 7:**

Create opportunities for students and faculty to work with solution seekers from local First Nations, communities, government and industry for collective decision making on equitable climate solutions, mitigation and adaptation projects

#### **ACTIONS**

Provide students with practical experience, career training and skills through course-based projects, and support for work-integrated learning opportunities with community partners.

Identify and address sustainability and climate collaboration opportunities with local governments and organizations where Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) exist and develop new partnerships where agreements do not yet exist.

Use university spaces to host community events, public lectures, adult/youth/children's education and workshops that introduce new ideas, research projects and actions for sustainable futures within and beyond the university community.

### **CLIMATE AND SUSTAINABILITY HUB**

The Climate and Sustainability Hub is an entity to coordinate, enhance and promote climate and sustainability solutions across education, research, operations and UVic's internal and external communities. This hub will uphold and uplift Indigenous Knowledge as well as Indigenous groups and individuals on campus and in surrounding communities. The initiatives to build the hub are:

**Initiative 8:** Explore, design and develop structures to create a Climate and Sustainability Hub

#### **ACTIONS**

Determine through what structure, processes and governance a hub can act as a climate and sustainability central support and coordinating body for the university and community.

Develop new internal partnerships with researchers, research institutes and ancillary services to deliver climate and sustainability engagement programs, research projects and strategic initiatives.

Coordinate and leverage current teaching offerings of climate and sustainability across faculties to facilitate the creation of multidisciplinary programs and new educational opportunities for diverse groups of students.

Develop institutional infrastructure and appropriate human resources to support the development, testing, tracking and advancement of climate and sustainability solutions across portfolios (research, teaching, learning, operations, Indigenous, community relations).

Provide opportunities for students, faculty, staff and community members to learn, share knowledge and collaborate on climate action and sustainability initiatives through coordinated programs of engagement, events, training, education and celebration.

**Initiative 9:** Coordinate and enhance university communications to amplify climate and sustainability teaching, research and operational practices at UVic

Develop communication strategies to report on news and activities related to climate and sustainability research, teaching and operations, including the advancement of the UN Sustainable Development Goals.

Engage with key stakeholders, community members, policy makers and media, and present opportunities to partner or donate toward driving climate and sustainability solutions.

Communicate the positive physical and mental health aspects and intergenerational equity benefits of transitioning to a low-carbon and sustainable campus and community.

#### Initiative 10:

Embed community into climate and sustainability policy and programming across the university and act as a nexus of resources and matchmaking to internal and external communities

#### **ACTIONS**

Develop a robust partnership strategy for collaboration on climate and sustainability solutions.

Integrate the principles, values and approach of community-university engagement into climate and sustainability policy and programming to leverage and support community partnerships, community-engaged learning, research impact and place-based challenges.

Advocate for all levels of government to invest in climate and sustainability actions, especially in areas that align with UVic's strategy.

Provide a platform to engage with local First Nations and community groups and to provide expertise to anticipate and respond to government policy needs and development.

Explore opportunities to invest in and facilitate existing and new climate and sustainability projects with internal and external community partners, such as through a new annual Community Initiatives Fund.

Recognize and reward existing university partners in the community who are leading climate and sustainability action.

## GOALS, STRATEGIES AND ACTIONS

The following section outlines goals and strategies based on four thematic areas. The goals articulate what the university wants to achieve in each area, while the strategies articulate how we will achieve our goals.

## xé?xə təŋəxw I XAXE TENEW I SACRED EARTH

These goals were developed by the xé?xə tə́ŋəxw | XAXE TENEW Task Force and are expressed here in their voice.

When considering the scope of our future work together, we ask how our actions will benefit the lands, waters and communities of this area. The ləkwəŋən words xé?xə təŋəxw and the SENĆOŦEN words XAXE TEŊEW mean sacred earth, and contain important relational responsibilities contained in the goals, strategies and actions below. xé?xə təŋəxw | XAXE TEŊEW involves honouring and perpetuating relationships to the lands, waters and Nations of this territory and recognizing their self-determination, authority and stewardship. Through an ethic of climate justice, decolonization, reciprocity and generosity, our goal is to go beyond standard practices of sustainability toward abundance, which entails giving back more than is taken.

We also strive to centre local Indigenous Knowledge Systems and worldviews in order to confront the realities of ongoing colonization and climate change. Indigenous Knowledge Systems are not confined to Traditional Ecological Knowledge (TEK) forms of legibility — they are a complex web of relationships grounded in languages, communities, living histories, ceremonial life, governance, stories, laws, lands, waters and more-than-human relations.

- Goal 1: Honour and respect the lands, water, air and all living things including the spiritual and interconnected elements of the earth with acknowledgement for the important relationship with local Indigenous Nations and Knowledge Systems
- **Strategy 1.1:** Build respectful and meaningful relationships with local Nations supporting self-determination, to understand and uplift their climate and sustainability goals.

#### **ACTIONS**

Acknowledge the leadership and knowledge of local Nations as stewards of the traditional territories for past, present and future generations.

Create new University-Indigenous partnership agreements to engage with Songhees, Esquimalt and WSÁNEĆ Nations and develop opportunities for collaboration and improve access to the university's research, academic programs and expertise.

Prioritize local Indigenous Knowledge Systems by developing new, collaborative community-led sustainability projects and guiding the university community toward learning and understanding Indigenous ways of knowing and being.

Uplift Indigenous strengths and stories to external media and communities to increase education and awareness, and illustrate partnerships and involvement that drive positive change.

**Strategy 1.2:** Identify plans and strategies to transform the relationships with campus lands and waters guided by Indigenous Knowledge Systems.

#### **ACTIONS**

Develop a campus natural areas management plan with input and guidance from local Knowledge Holders and local Indigenous Nations.

Continue to engage in environmental restoration projects to remediate damage to natural habitats and species on campus with guidance from Indigenous Knowledge Holders and local Nations.

Foster awareness of Indigenous languages and connections to campus lands and waters with new  $l = k^w = \eta = 0$  place names and interpretive signage.

**Strategy 1.3:** Engage with Indigenous Knowledge Holders to identify, learn about, celebrate and promote valued natural areas on campus.

#### **ACTIONS**

Implement the Seedling Project

Develop new opportunities for land-based learning and sustainable land and water management on campus, such as  $q^w + a = 1 \text{ K£O}_E \text{L}$  (Kwetlal |camas) harvesting, pit cooks, native plant gardens and local food systems.

- **Goal 2:** Uplift and amplify Indigenous voices within climate and sustainability conversations and actions both intergenerationally and in ways that reflect the diversity of Indigenous communities
- **Strategy 2.1:** Provide appropriate cultural safety training and learning opportunities to decolonize and create an inclusive campus culture.

Develop new accessible knowledge-sharing events and resources that offer students, faculty, staff and community, including Indigenous peoples, opportunities to engage and innovate together.

Promote and practice cultural humility across the university community and in our governance structures.

**Strategy 2.2:** With local Nations, recognize, cultivate and honour Indigenous leadership on climate and sustainability action.

#### **ACTIONS**

Create an on-campus support network of Indigenous climate and sustainability action and dialogue that recognizes emerging Indigenous leadership in this field.

Provide more opportunities to engage with Elders and Knowledge Holders to share their expertise in implementing climate and sustainability actions.

Explore the development of formal awards, scholarships, published storytelling and other artistic expressions to recognize the work of Indigenous climate and sustainability leadership.

- **Goal 3:** Centre and uplift Indigenous Knowledge Systems in relation to climate change and sustainability
- Strategy 3.1: Identify opportunities to support the development of climate and sustainaibility-related Indigenous Knowledge Systems through research and teaching initiatives including understanding climate risks, baseline data and planning activities.

#### **ACTIONS**

Explore opportunities to include Indigenous Knowledge Systems in academic courses and programs.

Facilitate new community-engaged research partnerships relating to land-based learning, Indigenous food sovereignty and the regeneration of local food systems.

Engage Indigenous communities locally and provincially through sharing resources, knowledge and data that build strength and resilience.

### **INNOVATOR AND PARTNER**

UVic supports diverse research related to climate and sustainability. This includes seeding new and expanded climate and sustainability research and innovation, advancing research partnerships with industry, business and community, and supporting knowledge mobilization to advance climate action and sustainability locally and abroad. We have opportunities to build research and innovation capacity across campus, in every department, to ensure UVic is an incubator of solutions across all disciplines.

**Goal 4:** UVic is recognized as an international leader in climate and sustainability research

**Strategy 4.1:** Amplify the excellence of the university's researchers and research entities through strategic resource supports in internal services and external communications.

#### **ACTIONS**

Incentivize climate and sustainability collaborative research and campus networks through targeted internal supports.

Provide matching funds to leverage external funding opportunities in climate and sustainability research.

Act on opportunities that advance climate and sustainability research and creative works, and lead regional, national and international initiatives by leveraging existing and establishing new partnerships through co-designed projects.

Showcase climate and sustainability research excellence through creative means, awards and events.

**Strategy 4.2:** Advance UVic as a destination for remarkable talent while strengthening existing and developing new partnerships that build greater capacity in our internal and external communities.

#### **ACTIONS**

Bolster UVic's capacity to host climate-friendly, internationally recognized climate and sustainability-focused scholarly events.

Through funding opportunities, proactively seek outstanding early career researchers and postdoctoral fellows focusing on climate and sustainability issues.

Create inspirational spaces and facilities for cross-disciplinary, cross-sectoral collaboration, research and internal networks, including events and creatively designed indoor and outdoor spaces.

**Goal 5:** We lead transformative impact and innovative research on climate and sustainability solutions

**Strategy 5.1:** Take bold, informed and strategic risks to lead climate and sustainability research and solutions for societal transformation.

#### **ACTIONS**

Promote the Aspiration 2030 Audacity grants program to support bold new ideas in climate and sustainability research initiatives.

Invite external partners to co-design creative climate solutions and sustainability practices, including local, provincial and federal governments.

Bolster climate and sustainability within the university's newly established Innovation Network.

**Strategy 5.2:** Create opportunities for UVic students, faculty and staff to work with solution seekers from communities, government and industry for evidence-based decision making on equitable climate solutions, mitigation and adaptation.

#### **ACTIONS**

Provide opportunities for cross-campus networking through events.

As a research partner, collaborate with and support community and municipal plans, regional strengths, strategies and goals on climate and sustainability for innovative climate solutions beyond campus borders.

**Goal 6:** We advance and model sustainable research practices

**Strategy 6.1:** Ensure climate and sustainability research and best practices are shared with and informed by external partners.

#### **ACTIONS**

Leverage additional research and industry funds and provide community/industry and student learning opportunities.

Collaborate with other regional institutions of higher education to share research resources and best practices.

**Strategy 6.2:** Increase networking and research opportunities that are connected across departments and built into university processes and practices.

Revisit travel policies and internal travel grants to align with emissions reduction targets.

Create a university-wide policy encouraging academic employees to publish scholarly works as open access, or archive final post-peer reviewed scholarly works in an open-access repository with UVic Libraries.

Build a campus toolkit of simple changes to support low-carbon research practices.

## **EDUCATOR AND LEARNER**

UVic's climate and sustainability strategy advances our approaches to community-engaged learning and course content with increased relationships amongst equity, reconciliation, sustainability and climate action. Partnerships with on-campus leaders will support interdisciplinary and trans-disciplinary curriculum development.

Goal 7: UVic offers education on climate and sustainability that is available to all

**Strategy 7.1:** Provide a new lens to existing and develop new academic programs and learning outcomes to include climate and sustainability content that actively engages with the challenges posed by colonization and inequities.

#### **ACTIONS**

Provide all undergraduate and graduate students with access to climate and sustainability-related curricula and programming.

Create a Sustainability Literacy Assessment to evaluate the success of the university's sustainability education initiatives and gain insight into how these can be improved.

Engage with expertise within academic units and programs, relevant research institutes on campus and affiliated organizations to develop climate and sustainability content.

Through the development of a community of practice, offer support and mentorship to instructors seeking to integrate climate change and sustainability into their teaching.

**Strategy 7.2:** Develop diverse, innovative, cross- and interdisciplinary graduate programs and experiences focused on climate and sustainability challenges.

Create a climate and sustainability academic working group to review current content, identify existing barriers to cross-disciplinary teaching collaborations at the graduate level, and generate interest and potential for new collaborations.

Expand non-credit options on climate change and sustainability in existing and new areas.

- **Goal 8:** Students, faculty and staff are engaged and empowered to be climate and sustainability change agents and leaders
- **Strategy 8.1:** Expand the range of climate and sustainability initiatives and opportunities for greater student engagement outside the classroom on and off campus, while recognizing the needs of a diverse student population.

#### **ACTIONS**

Engage students with opportunities to participate in implementing the strategies and actions.

Explore the development of new programs to support university partnerships with public institutions and governments.

Work with Co-op and Career Services to create additional opportunities with organizations that are working on climate and sustainability initiatives.

Expand local field school experiences to work increasingly with communities on practical solutions.

Develop land-based education opportunities with Indigenous Knowledge Keepers.

Explore the development of new scholarships and grant funding opportunities to support student-led climate and sustainability initiatives.

**Strategy 8.2:** Explore technologies and create resources for students, faculty and staff to enhance how teaching and learning contribute to the university's goal of achieving a climate-positive campus by 2050.

#### **ACTIONS**

Invest in infrastructure to support remote learning and teaching.

Assess and reduce carbon footprint of field trips and practica/internships, where possible.

## **CLIMATE SOLUTIONS AND SUSTAINABILITY LEADER**

UVic supports climate mitigation, adaptation and sustainability practices across campus operations and planning. This includes reducing greenhouse gas emissions associated with campus buildings, energy, food and dining, grounds, purchasing, transportation, waste, water, investments, and internal communications and engagement. UVic has been implementing operationally focused sustainability action plans since 2009<sup>1</sup>.

Goal 9: UVic prioritizes sustainability and low-carbon resilience in service delivery on campus

**Strategy 9.1:** Foster a campus culture that integrates climate and sustainability into operational, administrative and financial planning processes.

#### **ACTIONS**

Develop new policies and tools, such as shadow carbon pricing, to assist in financial decision making and new funding to meet both interim and long-term climate targets.

Incorporate environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors into investment decisions in order to manage risk, seek opportunity and generate sustainable long-term returns.

Support the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) for investment disclosure of climate-related risks and opportunities, including the measurement of carbon intensity of investments to support decarbonization.

Make impact investments that reduce GHG emissions and align with the university's emissions reduction targets.

Ensure that actions within the plan are linked with measurement, reporting and transparency and that progress is shared broadly with the community.

Provide opportunities for employees to be literate in the causes and impacts of climate change and competent in their individual contributions to climate and sustainability action in their roles.

**Strategy 9.2:** Employ innovative local purchasing initiatives and sustainable operational practices that provide climate-friendly, high quality, ethically sourced, nutritious and diverse food options that sustain the health and well-being of the campus community.

<sup>1</sup> Sustainability Action Plans for campus operations: https://www.uvic.ca/sustainability/resources/policy/index.php

By 2030, decrease food-related GHG emissions by 50% from the 2019 baseline.

Make plant-based foods the default on 60% of campus menus.

Review purchasing practices and menus in campus food outlets to decrease the purchase of meat and dairy products and increase purchase and provision of plant-based foods.

Increase local suppliers to 30% of the supply chain by developing new and existing partnerships including Feed BC and Indigenous-led organizations.

Develop new community campaigns and online content to educate the campus community on healthy and climate-friendly diets.

Develop a climate and Fair Trade food labelling program and ensure University Food Services (UNFS) franchise agreements incorporate Fair Trade practices and products.

Develop a collaborative education and awareness campaign that focuses on waste reduction in UNFS operations.

**Strategy 9.3:** Employ purchasing and supply management services that apply sustainability principles resulting in the lowest negative environmental impact and the highest positive social outcomes.

#### **ACTIONS**

Engage faculty, staff, suppliers and service providers to understand and consider the social and environmental impact of procurement decisions.

Establish metrics to assess and monitor the performance of major suppliers and service providers on four sustainability dimensions: environment, ethics, labour and human rights, and sustainable procurement.

Develop training programs in Purchasing Services to promote and support sustainable procurement practices in alignment with the UN Sustainable Development Goals.

Establish a working group to promote collaborative scholarship, progressive operations management, and experiential learning on sustainable procurement practices within the university.

Develop sustainable procurement capacity and integration in collaboration with all units, promoting experiential learning on sustainable supply networks.

Establish purchasing guidelines for the procurement of low-emissions fleet vehicles and ground maintenance equipment.

**Goal 10:** Sustainability and low carbon resilience are key considerations in asset acquisition and management decisions at UVic

**Strategy 10.1:** Construct, renovate, maintain and operate campus buildings and infrastructure in a manner that promotes whole systems thinking and innovation.

#### **ACTIONS**

Transition all facilities on the Gordon Head campus from fossil-fuel systems to low-carbon energy systems to achieve net zero by 2040.

Establish partnerships and strategies that will financially enable investment in low-carbon energy systems by finding common goals with other university initiatives, faculties, institutions, governments and energy providers.

Achieve the standard of LEED V4 Gold certification or equivalent certification for all new buildings and major additions to existing buildings.

Accelerate efficiency and conservation measures to reduce energy consumption.

Update the Buildings and Grounds Usage Policy (BP3105) to standardize building temperature during daily occupied and unoccupied periods.

Create a formal certified Green Cleaning Policy that covers multiple attributes (cleaning, energy and water conservation operations and maintenance practices) and follow the Green Building Council rating system.

Develop a strategy to consolidate servers on campus and virtualized into the Enterprise Data Centre to improve computing energy efficiency.

Develop green building design guidelines, including exploration of strategies for GHG and energy intensity targets based on building typology and new third-party standards such as CAGBC Zero Carbon Standard.

Improve the project delivery process to include the following climate action elements:

- Integrated design processes to examine opportunities for reductions in operational emissions and embodied carbon;
- Assessment of a project's potential impact on campus energy use, GHG emissions and development of energy conservation measures;
- Lifecycle analysis during the schematic design process to understand the total cost of ownership, operational GHG emissions, and embodied carbon of various design options;
- Occupant thermal comfort analysis under predicted future climate conditions, using 2050 and 2080 as benchmarks.

Promote sustainable futures with increased efficiency in space utilization, striving for innovation and modern workplace environments, including open, collaborative work areas.

Identify energy optimization and GHG reduction strategies at the program stage for all new buildings, major additions and renovations that include HVAC upgrades.

Strategy 10.2: Advance the university's capacity to reduce and manage risks from climate change while improving the ability to anticipate, respond to and recover from extreme weather events and emergencies and contribute to the health and well-being of our local communities and environment.

#### **ACTIONS**

Carry out a climate risk assessment for the campus to assist the prioritization of investment in adaptation measures.

Plan, design and develop campus buildings, utilities and infrastructure that consider the impacts of climate change over the life of the asset in order to minimize disruptions to campus operations caused by extreme weather events.

**Strategy 10.3:** Support and promote sustainable transportation choices and infrastructure for the campus community and visitors, lower emissions, support healthy communities and act as a hub in a regional sustainable transportation network.

#### **ACTIONS**

Strategically implement push policies (disincentives) for single occupancy vehicle travel that balance with pull policies (incentives) for sustainable travel through the Travel Choices program.

Monitor parking pricing and review sales structure in order to provide commuters with greater flexibility in transportation choices.

Carry out biennial campus traffic survey to report on progress toward the 70% modal split target.

Develop a communications strategy for the university community to learn about and participate in active transportation research and supporting infrastructure programs.

Continue to support and advocate for improved transit service to UVic (including bus rapid transit).

Provide additional charging infrastructure for electric vehicles (EVs) and explore parking incentives for commuters to use EVs.

Explore new policies and IT supports related to remote meetings and conferencing that reduce demand for travel.

**Strategy 10.4:** Reduce water use and increase recovery, reuse and stewardship practices.

#### **ACTIONS**

Improve data availability and accuracy for water use on campus through new building-level water monitoring systems.

Reduce the use of potable water in buildings and infrastructure.

Engage the campus community on best practices in water conservation and sustainability practices.

Improve data availability and accuracy for water use on campus through new building-level water monitoring systems.

Reduce the use of potable water in buildings and infrastructure.

Engage the campus community on best practices in water conservation and sustainability practices.

**Strategy 10.5:** Create and maintain a campus landscape and natural areas that support Indigenous Knowledges, values and management principles, nature-based learning opportunities, and enhance resiliency, biodiversity and ecosystems.

Reduce the quantity and monitor the quality of campus storm water that enters local drainage and stream networks.

Minimize the impacts of invasive species through ongoing management and removal, prioritizing natural areas identified in the Campus Plan and supporting volunteer-led initiatives.

Build a greater understanding and inventory of threatened and endangered flora and fauna on campus.

Support improved public access, pedestrian management, restoration activities and nature-based learning opportunities in Mystic Vale.

**Strategy 10.6:** Provide services, infrastructure and engagement opportunities to advance the university toward a zero-waste campus.

#### **ACTIONS**

Through community engagement and waste-reduction initiatives within University Food Services and Residence Services, reduce the total amount of waste produced per campus user (students, staff and faculty).

Develop new and improved waste management policies, processes and infrastructure to support waste reduction targets.

Engage suppliers and Purchasing Services to explore alternatives to single-use packaging and containers, phase out the sale of plastic bottled water beverages and ensure all to-go utensils, dishes and packaging are compostable.

Establish a surcharge for single-use food containers and beverage cups.

Develop a pilot project for reusable food containers in University Food Services outlets.

- **Goal 11:** We have established baseline, tracking, reporting and reduction procedures for Scope 3 extended impact emissions.
- Develop new policies, strategies and programs to support the IPCC-recommended 1.5°C pathways for the reduction of Scope 3 emissions in employee air travel, commuting, waste, food systems and embodied carbon within new buildings and update the CSAP accordingly.

## IMPLEMENTATION AND REPORTING

## **IMPLEMENTATION**

Implementation of the *Climate and Sustainability Action Plan* (CSAP) will take place during the years leading up to 2030, with short, medium and long-term actions identified and resourced annually. An implementation committee will be appointed to be responsible for the evolution of the identified actions and for determining immediate next steps. This will include the development of a Collaboration and Resourcing Strategy to ensure appropriate internal and external partnerships and adequate resources are made available to advance the CSAP.

## **REPORTING**

*CSAP 2030 Actions* is a living document that will be updated as actions are completed and as new priorities emerge. The CSAP will undergo an annual review, which will include:

 Annual accounting of scope 1, 2 and 3 GHG emissions as part of the Carbon Neutral Government program – legislated under the Climate Change Accountability Act (CCAA).

Annual reporting on progress towards the Sustainable Development Goals, in alignment with the Times Higher Education ranking process.

As well, the CSAP will undergo a formal review process every three years, in line with the AASHE STARS review cycle. The implementation committee will develop a reporting template to assist with crossfunctional reporting.

## **GLOSSARY OF TERMS**

**Biodiversity:** A characteristic of an ecosystem that describes the diversity of life it contains, and directly correlates to the function and resilience of that ecosystem. Biodiversity is manifested at all levels of the organization and functioning of biological life, from the micro to the macro level, including genetic diversity, diversity of species, ecosystems and biomes, and cultural diversity

**Business As Usual (BAU):** A situational context or scenario that does not undergo any change; a scenario where no climate action is taken.

**Operational Emissions:** Emissions generated through operations, defined as emissions from sources directly controlled and operated by UVic, including combustion of natural gas (scope 1), and from upstream emissions from electricity consumed (scope 2).

**Carbon Dioxide (CO2 ):** A naturally occurring gas that is also a by-product of the combustion of fossil fuels and biomass, land-use changes, and other industrial processes. It is the principal anthropogenic greenhouse gas. It is the reference gas against which other greenhouse gases are measured and therefore has a Global Warming Potential (GWP) of 1.

**Carbon Offset:** A tradable credit that is used to counterbalance – or offset – greenhouse gas emissions. A B.C. Offset Unit represents a tonne of carbon dioxide equivalent that was either removed from the atmosphere or not released into the atmosphere as the result of direct, beyond business-as-usual action by a project proponent. These actions are validated and verified by an independent, accredited third-party to ensure they are real, permanent and additional. Organizations that have an obligation or desire to offset their greenhouse gas emissions can purchase B.C. offset units to meet emissions reduction or net-zero targets. UVic currently purchases offsets at a rate of \$25 per tCO2e emissions under the Carbon Neutral Program.

**Carbon Sequestration:** The process of capturing and storing atmospheric carbon dioxide. It is one method of reducing the amount of carbon dioxide in the atmosphere with the goal of reducing global climate change.

**CleanBC:** A plan developed by the British Columbia provincial government that sets 2030 climate goals through energy and industry emission reduction innovations and initiatives.

**Climate Adaptation:** An approach aimed to mitigate the suffering and destruction of climate change through adapting ecological, social, economic and physical environments to withstand threats such as rising sea levels, severe storms, higher temperatures and changes in rainfall patterns.

**Climate Justice:** A holistic approach to climate action that acknowledges the ways in which climate change and its consequences affect underprivileged and marginalized populations more strongly, compounding and exacerbating the existing inequalities experienced by these populations.

**Climate Mitigation:** A human intervention to reduce GHG emissions produced, or enhance carbon sequestration of greenhouse gases (GHGs).

**Carbon Neutral:** Under the Carbon Neutral Program, legislated by the Climate Change Accountability Act, UVic is required to achieve carbon neutrality by measuring operational greenhouse gas emissions, planning and taking action to reduce emissions, offsetting the remainder, demonstrating transparency through annual public reporting of these achievements and being subject to independent verification to ensure completeness and accuracy. The requirements for achieving carbon neutral status are:

- Pursue actions to minimize the relevant GHG emissions for the reporting period; and,
- Net the remainder GHG emissions in accordance with the Carbon Offset program.

**Climate Positive:** Activity goes beyond achieving net-zero carbon emissions to create an environmental benefit from removing additional carbon dioxide from the atmosphere. This is also referred to as Carbon negative.

**Climate Resilience:** The degree to which a socio-ecological system can withstand and adapt to the adverse effects of a changing climate.

**District Energy System:** A heating system that produces hot water and distributed it through a network of underground pipes between buildings to provide space and hot water heating to buildings on campus. The District Energy System is the primary heating plant on campus.

**Extended Impact Emissions:** Carbon emissions from activities that are not always fully controlled by UVic, but that the institution impacts and influences through purchasing decisions, plans, policies, guidelines, behavioral change programs, and others. These emissions are generally referred to as scope 3 emissions and include sources such as commuting to and from campus, business air travel, food consumed on campus, waste, and the embodied carbon associated with the construction of new buildings and retrofits.

**Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions:** Gases emitted from fuel combustion and other sources, that contribute to the greenhouse effect and global warming. This includes carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, ozone, and chlorofluorocarbons.

**Low carbon energy:** Energy that is generated using lower amounts of carbon emissions into the atmosphere than conventional fossil fuel-based energy sources. The hydro-electricity produced by BC Hydro to power the integrated electricity grid is considered low carbon energy.

**Net Zero:** Reducing and negating operational GHG emissions from human activities to as close to zero as possible, and matching any remaining emissions with an equivalent amount of carbon sequestration.

**Renewable Natural Gas (RNG):** A biogas (or biomethane) that results from bacteria breaking down organic waste from sources such as landfills, agriculture and wastewater treatment facilities, and is upgraded to a quality similar to fossil natural gas. Because of its biological source, it is considered a carbon neutral energy source.

**Resilience:** An ongoing process of diverse, interconnected relationships and processes that activate and build up resilience-enhancing capacities within and across a community for short-, medium- and long-term sustainability and wellbeing.

**Sustainability:** UVic has defined sustainability as the state of achieving the ecological balance that allows social development and economic prosperity to be achieved across generations. This definition includes the following terms:

- Ecological Balance is the equilibrium between, and coexistence of, all organisms and their environment.
- Social Development encompasses a commitment to create social opportunities for individuals and groups to enhance overall community health and well-being.
- Economic Prosperity is a financially healthy state.

**Sustainability Tracking and Rating System (STARS):** A transparent, self-reporting framework for colleges and universities to measure their sustainability performance. It was created by the Association for the Advancement of Sustainability in Higher Education (AASHE), a non-profit organization designed to support the advancement of sustainability in higher education.

**Traditional Ecological Knowledge:** The knowledge, practice, and belief concerning the relationship of living beings to one another and to the physical environment, which is held by peoples in relatively nontechnological societies with a direct dependence upon local resources.

**UN Race to Zero Campaign:** A UN Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCC) supported global campaign, driven by science, to rally international leadership and support from businesses, cities, regions, investors and universities to reach a zero-carbon recovery that prevents future threats and unlocks inclusive, sustainable growth.



